## **Lantau Development Advisory Committee (LanDAC)**

### **House Rules**

- 1. Frequency and Mode of Meetings
  - (1) The LanDAC will meet about once every three months, or as needed.
  - (2) Meetings of LanDAC do not require a quorum.
  - (3) Meetings of LanDAC will be conducted closed door.
  - (4) Meetings of LanDAC will be conducted in Cantonese. Simultaneous interpretation will be arranged as necessary.
  - (5) Agendas and confirmed minutes of meetings prepared by the Secretariat of the LanDAC will be in both Chinese and English while the meeting materials prepared by Members may be in either language or both.

### 2. Transparency Measures

- (1) Relevant information on the composition, functions and transparency measures of the LanDAC are kept and updated at regular intervals.
- (2) The following information on Members of the LanDAC is available to the public upon request:
  - (a) attendance records:
  - (b) years of service on the LanDAC; and
  - (c) occupation/profession by broad categories.
- (3) Membership and Terms of Reference of the LanDAC are uploaded onto the website of the Development Bureau (http://www.devb.gov.hk/en/boards\_and\_committees/landac/index.html).

- (4) House rules, agendas, confirmed minutes of meetings and selected discussion papers/reports are uploaded onto the website of the Development Bureau (http://www.devb.gov.hk/ en/boards\_and\_committees/landac/index.html). In general, discussion papers/reports will be classified (a) "Unclassified", (b) "Restricted" before meeting, (c) "Restricted" before and after meeting and (d) "Confidential". (a) and (b) will be uploaded onto the website of the Development Bureau after deliberation in meetings. (c) and (d) may be available to the public upon request in accordance with the "Code on Access to Information". (d) will be tabled for discussion at meeting and re-collected by the Secretariat after the meeting.
- (5) Except for declaration of interests under Section 3 below, the names of speakers at the meetings apart from government officials will not be shown in the confirmed minutes of meetings unless otherwise specifically requested by the concerned speaking Member.
- (6) The LanDAC may discuss and agree on a line-to-take to respond to media enquiries after the respective meetings. The Chairman may also brief the press after a meeting. Individual Members if approached by the media may refer the enquiries to the Secretariat for follow up. Should they speak to the media, they may express their personal views but should not claim to represent the LanDAC or refer to the opinions of other Members.

# 3. System of Declaration of Interests

# General Principles

(1) Advisory and statutory bodies appointed by the Government play an important role in the formulation and implementation of public policy. Members of these bodies should, and be seen to, render objective and impartial advice in the overall public interest of Hong Kong. To assure the public that these bodies are indeed rendering objective and impartial advice, it is

the established policy of the Government to introduce a system of declaration of interests for each of these bodies.

- (2) When a Member (including the Chairman) of the LanDAC perceives a potential conflict of interest in a matter placed before the LanDAC, he/she should make full disclosure of his interest at the earliest opportunity. The basic principle to be observed is that Members' advice should be disinterested and impartial. It is the responsibility of each Member to judge and decide if the situation warrants a declaration, and to seek a ruling from the Chairman in case of doubt.
- (3) It is impossible to define or describe all the situations that would call for such a declaration, because each individual case differs, and because of the difficulty of catering for unusual and unforeseen circumstances. On the other hand, it is not intended that a Member should make a declaration of interest simply because the LanDAC is considering a matter in which he/she has knowledge or experience.

## Potential Conflict of Interest Situations

The following are potential conflict of interest situations for which Members are required to declare interests-

- (4) Direct personal or pecuniary interests in a matter under consideration by the LanDAC, held either by a Member or by the spouse, a child under 18 or by any close relative of his/hers. Members are themselves the best judge of who, in the particular circumstances, is a "close relative".
- (5) A directorship, partnership, advisory or client relationship, employment or other significant connection with a company, firm, club, association, union or other organisation which is, to the knowledge of a Member, connected with, or the subject of, a matter under consideration by the LanDAC.
- (6) Some friendships which might be so close, and to the

knowledge of a Member is connected with a matter under consideration by LanDAC, as to warrant declaration in order to avoid situations where an objective observer might believe a Member's advice to have been influenced by the closeness of the association.

- (7) A Member who, as a barrister, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser, has personally or as a member of a company, advised or represented or had frequent dealings with any person or body connected with a matter under consideration by the LanDAC.
- (8) Any interest likely to lead an objective observer to believe that a Member's advice might have been motivated by personal interest rather than a duty to give impartial advice.

# Registration of Interests

- (9) Members (including the Chairman) of LanDAC are required to complete a "Registration of Interests". The completed registration form will be kept by the Secretariat and will be uploaded onto the website of the Development Bureau (http://www.devb.gov.hk/en/boards\_and\_committees/landac/index.html) for public inspection.
- (10) If there are changes to the particulars of a Member's registrable interests during his/her term of service, he/she should report in writing such changes to the Secretariat within 14 days of any changes.

#### Declaration of Interests at Meetings

The following are guidelines governing declaration of interests at meetings-

(11) If a Member (including the Chairman) has any direct personal or pecuniary interest in any matter under consideration by the LanDAC, he/she must, as soon as practicable after he/she has

- become aware of it, disclose to the Chairman (or the LanDAC) prior to the discussion of the item.
- (12) The Chairman shall decide whether the Member disclosing an interest may speak or vote on the matter, may remain in the meeting as an observer, or should withdraw from the meeting.
- (13) If the Chairman declares an interest in a matter under consideration, the chairmanship may be temporarily taken over by a Member nominated by the Chairman and agreed by the majority of the Members present at the meeting.
- (14) In the event of (13) above, the temporary Chairman shall decide whether the Chairman may speak or vote on the matter, may remain in the meeting as an observer, or should withdraw from the meeting.
- (15) When a known direct pecuniary interest exists, the Secretariat may withhold circulation of relevant papers to the Member concerned. Where a Member is in receipt of a paper for discussion which he/she knows presents a direct conflict of interest, he/she should immediately inform the Secretariat and return the paper.
- (16) All cases of declaration of interests with names of the concerned Members shall be recorded in the confirmed minutes of the meetings concerned.

### 4. Confidentiality Requirements

(1) To facilitate the LanDAC's consideration of issues relating to its Terms of Reference, information, statistics, documents, power point presentations or the like containing sensitive or confidential information may be submitted to the LanDAC as necessary. Members are reminded not to disclose the content of such information or documents, or the deliberations at the LanDAC, to the public except for those that can be allowed for disclosure under Section 2(4) above.

(2) Information, statistics, documents, power point presentations or the like containing sensitive or confidential information will be suitably marked "confidential" or the like.